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Dear Craig 

34 Yarrunga Street, Prestons  

 

 

I have considered the “traffic” issues raised by the Department of Planning (letter of 

30.8.17), RMS (letters of 30.8.17 and 13.10.17) and Council (letter of 24.8.17 and 

attached memos) and respond in the following: 

 

Firstly, as indicated in the Department of Planning email of 25.10.17, Warehouse 1 (i.e. 

6) and the Sports and Recreation Facility (4) are not part of the Mod 2 Application. The 

traffic assessment which accompanied the S96 Applications, for simplicity, assessed the 

combined Mod 2 and Mod 3 proposals.  

 

The assessed total traffic generation of the approved SSD 7155 development scheme 

was 258 vtph for the AM & PM network peaks (page 13 of the TTPA assessment March 

2016). The total proposed warehouse (plus office) floorspace for the Mod 2 application 

is 119,165m2 whereas the total floorspace of the SSD approval was 116,205m2. The 

Traffic Assessment for the SSD application “offered” a very significant sensitivity factor 

to the RMS sourced “network peak” traffic generation rates. Whereas the RMS published 

network peak trip generations for Erskine Park and Wonderland Business Park (see 

attached) were as follows: 

 

 AM PM 

Erskine Park 0.13 0.17 

Wonderland Bus. Park 0.14 0.17 

 

If the highest RMS “comparable” traffic generation rate (0.17 vtph per 100m2) is applied 

to the now proposed 119,165m2, the resultant total projected traffic generation is 203 

vtph. Thus, the projected traffic generation of the Mod 2 development scheme assessed 
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with the actual rates provided in the RMS study is significantly lower than that assessed 

and approved for the SSD application. 

 

 

DOP RFI 

 

Traffic 5 Expected Peak Periods 

 

Based on RMS data: 

 

 AM PM 

Site Peaks 6.30 – 7.30am 3 – 4pm 

Network Peaks 8 – 9am 5 – 6pm 

  

Traffic 6 Impact of Construction Traffic 

 

The construction vehicle movements associated with the staged construction elements 

of the development will be significantly less than that of the traffic generation of the 

completed and operational elements and as such there are no measures needed to 

manage the construction traffic movements.   

  

Traffic 7 Traffic Assessment 

 

The assessed warehouse floorspace in the Traffic Reports of 112,854m2 did not include 

Buildings 4 and 6 which were separately assessed and added (see page 9) to give the 

total assessed generation due to the fact that they do not reflect a warehouse use as 

such and are subject to a separate S96 application. It is noted however that the assessed 

total warehouse/office floorspace 119,070m2 (see top P10) should have been 

119,165m2. However, the +95m2 would have no perceptible difference. 

  

Traffic 8 

 

For others 

  

Traffic 9 Expected Daily Traffic 

 

The RMS published average daily generation factor is 2.1 vtph / 100m2 so 119,165m2 is 

2,500 vpd plus Buildings 4 and 6 of say 500 vpd gives a total of 3,000 vpd. 

 

Cars 70% 

Rigid 17% 

Articulated 13% 

*classification based on RMS data, no more detailed info available 
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Traffic 10 & 11 

 

For others 

  

 

Traffic 12 Parking for Warehouse 1 

 

The proposed provision is 1 space per 241m2 which significantly exceeds the RMS 

criteria of 1 space per 300m2 and Council’s criteria is 1 space per 250m2.  The proposed 

152 spaces exceed the provision of 132 spaces at the existing Volvo facility which is to 

be transferred to the site. 

 

EMAIL OF 25.10.17 

 

Access Arrangement 

 

The proposed access on Bernera Road for WH3B is to enable the user to “side load” 

some trucks and the access gate will only be opened to enable the side loaded trucks 

to egress. These will be very minor truck movements restricted to left turn egress only 

enforced by a central median island in Bernera Road incorporated into the Chevron at 

the commencement of the proposed right turn bay (see attached plan). This 

arrangement reflects the same treatment which is approved for the Building 4 access on 

Bernera Road and the minor egress movements will be facilitated by gaps in the 

northbound traffic flow introduced by the operation of the traffic signals at the intersection 

to the south. Consequently, there will not be any adverse traffic implications as a result 

of this aspect of the proposal particularly as the roadway is straight and level, there will 

be excellent sight distances available and the egress activity will be somewhat less than 

that for WH4 where access has been approved for both ingress and egress. 

 

Traffic Impact 

 

The RMS traffic generation criteria for warehouse use does not differentiate between the 

warehouse and ancillary office elements and it is noted that the size of the proposed 

ancillary office elements is not inordinate. The issue relating to WH1 (6) and the 

Sports/Recreational facility are addressed in the forgoing. 

 

Widening of Bernera Road 

 

The generalised widening of Bernera Road is to be undertaken with Section 94 funds 

therefore it is not the responsibility of individual developers to widen the road other than 

on site frontage to Bernera Road. The northbound carriageway of Bernera Road along 

the entire road frontage from Kurrajong Road to Yarrunga Road and for the length of the 

right turn bay north of Yarrunga Road will be widened as a responsibility of the 
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development. The DOP advise that the generalised widening of Bernera Road is not 

required as part of Mod 2. 

  

The SIDRA model file for the intersection as incorporated in the Traffic Report and has 

been provided to Council and RMS. 

 

COUNCIL ISSUES 

 

Traffic Generation 

 

The RMS traffic generation rate for Warehouse use of 0.5 vtph/100m2 was established 

in a study/analysis by the former Traffic Authority in 1979 nearly 40 years ago (see 

attached).  This study assessed sites of 1,920m2, 4,730m2, 6,140m2 and 7,220m2 etc 

which bear no relevance to contemporary large warehouses with 12 hour shifts etc. 

  

The RMS circular TDT 2013/04 specifies that the new data for the relevant landuses 

(e.g. Business Parks and Industrial Estates) “should be used to replace those sections 

of the existing Guide to Traffic Generating Developments”. 

  

The survey for RMS for TDT 2013/04 for Erskine Park included 5 factories, 2 

factory/warehouses and 1 office building and 1 workshop (Linfox Trucks). 

  

The submission from Liverpool Council references a survey for RMS of a “Warehouse” 

use of 136,737m2 and its traffic generation rate of 0.919 vtph/100m2.  This survey was 

for a site at Tuggerah (see attached details) which incorporates besides warehouse use 

93 offices and 16 retail outlets.  It is apparent therefore that the nature of the site bears 

no resemblance to the proposed warehouse development or the other referenced 

comparable warehouse precincts contained in the same RMS document (i.e. Erskine 

Park and Wonderland). 

 

 

RMS ISSUES (13.10.17) 

 

Intersection Arrangement 

 

Further turning path assessment has been undertaken as Council has advised that it is 

not possible to acquire the necessary land on the NW and SE corners in the short term 

to achieve the final intersection arrangement for the left turn movements although there 

is a current DA submitted for the site on the NW corner of the intersection and Council 

will impose a Consent Condition on that DA requiring dedication of the required land 

necessary to achieve the required intersection geometry. The attached SP 1, 2 and 

signage/roadmarking diagrams indicate: 
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SP 1 – B Double trucks turning right and semi-trailers turning left with some minor trim 

to the proposed kerbs on the NW and SE corners. It would be proposed that regulatory 

signage be installed “NO LEFT TURN ON GREEN ARROW VEHICLES OVER 19M 

LONG” for the left turn movements (this is equivalent to the relatively common “NO 

RIGHT/LEFT TURN VEHICLES LESS THAN X M EXCEPTED”. 

 

SP 2 – B Double trucks turning right and left requiring some greater trim of the proposed 

kerbs with implications for the location of kerb ramps and cyclist/pedestrian movements. 

 

The turning paths for right turning B Double vehicles are not a “single radius” turn 

however guidelines (T1) would be provided to guide the drivers and this is considered 

to be an acceptable interim arrangement until the land is acquired and the left turn radii 

modified. 

 

Floorspace / Traffic Generation 

 

Clarified in the forgoing 

 

SIDRA Model Results 

 

The SIDRA models are for the proposed intersection with the projected traffic generation 

of the two relevant developments with a very significant sensitivity factor added. The 

overall Levels of Service are C in the AM peak and D in the PM peak. It is also noted a 

50% heavy vehicle percentage was applied to the Yato Road movements. 

 

In the circumstances it is considered that the SIDRA results are quite satisfactory. 

 

Intersection Design 

 

It is not feasible to achieve a fully complying B Double design for the intersection at the 

present time. However, it is noted that: 

 

- the very predominant turning movements at this intersection are and will 

continue to be the movements to and from the M7 (the north) 

- there is a very large H.V. transmission pole on the SW corner (right on the 

kerb return) and no apparent opportunity at present to acquire the land to 

improve the geometry of that corner 

- reducing the footway widths to 2 metres on each corner would enable B 

Double passing however this would position signal posts in the middle of the 

footways (obstructing pedestrians and cyclists) and would not permit the 

appropriate provision for kerb ramps. 
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It is suggested that the way forward to achieve a satisfactory interim arrangement of this 

intersection is to: 

 

- modify the proposed NW and SE corners to accommodate a semi-trailer 

turning left with a right turn B Double and install signage prohibiting B Doubles 

turning on green arrow. It is assessed that the percentage of B Double 

vehicles making the left turn movements will only be some 5% of the total 

movements and that this will not impact on the operational performance of the 

intersection particularly as the green arrow provision is only supplementary to 

the respective main signal phase movements. 

- designate the centre approach lanes on Yarrunga Street and Yato Road as 

right turn only and provide road marking to guide the movement of turning 

trucks (see attached plan). 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Ross Nettle 
Director 
Transport and Traffic Planning Associates
 

 


























